
 

 
 

October 4, 2017 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
Ms. Alina M. Semo, Director 
Office of Government Information Services (OGIS) 
National Archives and Records Administration 
8601 Adelphi Road, Room 2510 
College Park, MD 20740-6001 
E-mail: ogis@nara.gov 
 

Re:  Department of Labor FOIA Appeal, No. 150080  
 
Dear Director Semo: 

I write on behalf of Cause of Action Institute (“CoA Institute”), a nonprofit strategic oversight 
group committed to ensuring that government decision-making is open, honest, and fair.1  In carrying 
out its mission, CoA Institute uses investigative and legal tools to educate the public about the im-
portance of government transparency and accountability.  Foremost among these tools is the Freedom 
of Information Act (“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552.  This letter is a request for the assistance of the Office 
of Government Information Services (“OGIS”) in contacting the Department of Labor (“DOL”) 
with respect to a substantially-overdue FOIA appeal determination. 

More than three years ago, on September 24, 2014, CoA Institute submitted an administrative 
appeal to DOL that challenged the agency’s determination on a November 26, 2013 FOIA request.2  
Specifically, CoA Institute disputed the adequacy of DOL’s search and its use of Exemptions 5 and 6 
as grounds for redacting responsive records.  CoA Institute re-submitted its appeal four months later, 
on January 21, 2015, after DOL claimed never to have received it.3  Despite regular attempts to contact 
DOL and responsible officials—including the FOIA Public Liaison, Raymond Mitten—the agency 
has failed to provide any update on the processing of CoA Institute’s appeal, except to acknowledge 
receipt of it.4 

 
It has now been 1,106 days since the submission of CoA Institute’s appeal.  It has been 1,408 

days—nearly four years—since the submission of the underlying request to which DOL provided an 
adverse determination.  CoA Institute’s attempts to contact the FOIA Appeals Unit in DOL’s Office 
of the Solicitor have proven futile.  The agency’s non-responsiveness is entirely unacceptable. 

 
As you know, the FOIA requires an agency to issue a determination on any administrative 

appeal within twenty working days of receiving it,5 or in the case of unusual circumstances, within 

                                                 
1 See CAUSE OF ACTION INST., About, www.causeofaction.org/about (last visited Oct. 4, 2017). 
2 Letter from CoA Inst. to M. Patricia Smith, Dep’t of Labor (Sept. 25, 2014) (attached as Exhibit 1). 
3 E-mail from CoA Inst. to Linda Robinson, Dep’t of Labor (Jan. 21, 2015) (attached as Exhibit 2). 
4 Letter from Raymond E. Mitten, Jr., Dep’t of Labor, to CoA Inst. (Jan. 28, 2015) (attached as Exhibit 3). 
5 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(ii). 
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thirty working days.6  In this case, DOL never invoked the automatic extension for unusual circum-
stances.  It is hard to imagine that CoA Institute’s appeal is so complicated, or the records at issue so 
voluminous, as to justify so lengthy a delay.  At the least, DOL should have responded to CoA Insti-
tute’s repeated attempts to secure an update on the processing of the appeal, including an estimated 
date of completion—information that agencies are statutorily required to provide for FOIA requests.7 

 
Considering the significant delay in the processing of its appeal, CoA Institute requests that 

OGIS intervene and communicate to DOL the importance of issuing a determination forthwith.  Ad-
ditionally, OGIS should advise DOL to contact CoA Institute and to provide an estimated timeline 
for its determination and the supplemental production of any re-processed records, if applicable. 

 
A privacy consent statement is not required for OGIS’s mediation in this case because DOL 

has published a Systems of Records Notice governing OGIS’s routine use of FOIA-related files.  Nev-
ertheless, to the extent that OGIS may need to consult with other agencies, and in accordance with 
the Privacy Act of 1974, CoA Institute hereby authorizes OGIS to make inquiries on CoA Institute’s 
behalf, including the right to review all documentation that OGIS deems necessary for responding to 
this request for assistance.  CoA Institute understands that documents provided to OGIS may be 
copied and forwarded to officials at other federal agencies as part of the mediation process.  CoA 
Institute authorizes all federal departments, agencies, or components to release to OGIS any infor-
mation and records related to CoA Institute’s FOIA request/appeal. 

 
Thank you for your immediate attention to this matter.  Please feel free to contact me by 

telephone at (202) 499-4232 or by e-mail at ryan.mulvey@causeofaction.org. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 

____________________________ 
RYAN P. MULVEY 
COUNSEL 

                                                 
6 Id. § 552(a)(6)(B)(i). 
7 Id. § 552(a)(7)(B)(ii). 
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From: Ryan Mulvey
To: "robinson.linda@dol.gov"
Subject: FW: 2014 9 25 FOIA Appeal to DOL
Date: Wednesday, January 21, 2015 9:47:00 AM
Attachments: 2014 9 25 FOIA Appeal to DOL.PDF

Ms. Robinson,
 
Please find attached the FOIA appeal we discussed on the phone.  Thank you for your help.
 
Best regards,
 
Ryan Mulvey
 
Ryan Mulvey | Counsel | Cause of Action
1919 Pennsylvania Avenue NW | Suite 650 | Washington, DC 20006
Ryan.Mulvey@causeofaction.org
202.400.2729
Admitted to the practice of law in New York State and the District of Columbia
 
Confidentiality

The information contained in this communication may be confidential, is intended only for the use of the recipient named above, and may
be legally privileged. It is not intended as legal advice, and may not be relied upon or used as legal advice. Nor does this communication
establish an attorney client relationship between us. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified
that any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this communication, or any of its contents, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this
communication in error, please re-send this communication to the sender and delete the original message and any copy of it from your
computer system. Thank you.

 
 

From: Catalina Lehmann 
Sent: Thursday, September 25, 2014 10:41 AM
To: foiaappeal@dol.gov
Cc: Ryan Mulvey
Subject: 2014 9 25 FOIA Appeal to DOL
 
Hello,
 
Please find a FOIA appeal attached.

Thanks!
 
 
Catalina Lehmann | Cause of Action
1919 Pennsylvania Ave, NW, Suite 650
Washington, D.C. 20006
202-499-2418
Catalina.Lehmann@causeofaction.org
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